

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 27th day of October 1999.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

**Suzanne C. Black,**

*Deputy Director, Division of Licensing Project Management, Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation.*

[FR Doc. 99-28598 Filed 11-2-99; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 7590-01-P

## NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

[Docket Nos. 50-220 and 50-410]

### Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation Nine Mile Point Nuclear Station, unit Nos. 1 and 2 Issuance of Final Director's Decision Under 10 CFR 2.206

Notice is hereby given that the Director, Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation, has taken action with regard to a letter dated April 5, 1999, (Petition) filed by Robert Norway (Petitioner) pursuant to § 2.206 of Title 10 of the Code of Federal Regulations (10 CFR 2.206). The Petitioner requested that the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (Commission or NRC) take action with regard to Niagara Mohawk Power Corporation (NMPC) and its senior nuclear and corporate management. The Petitioner requested that the Commission (1) take enforcement action against NMPC and its senior nuclear and corporate management and, as a minimum, against three named individuals, for submitting an altered 1994 employee record to the NRC at a predecisional enforcement conference on May 10, 1996; (2) take enforcement action against these same parties for presenting at this predecisional enforcement conference a false written record of what the Administrative Law Judge determined in the Department of Labor's proceeding in 95-ERA-005; (3) take enforcement action against these same parties for placing confidential employee information into the public record in violation of 10 CFR 2.790; and (4) take enforcement action against these same parties for an additional act of discrimination, pursuant to 10 CFR 50.7, for destroying the Petitioner's credibility and reputation in the nuclear industry. The Petitioner also requested that the NRC forward these issues to the Department of Justice for consideration of criminal prosecution.

In addition to these requests for enforcement actions, the Petitioner also requested that the following other actions be implemented: (1) That the agency perform an independent review of all of NMPC's docketed files associated with the individuals who

committed the alleged fraud; (2) that the NRC forward the complaint to the NRC's Office of the Inspector General for an investigation of possible deliberate misconduct on the part of the NRC staff; (3) that an independent oversight group be established to oversee the NMPC Human Resources Department and Employee Concerns Program; (4) that a public meeting be held to obtain public comments pertaining to a number of issues, including discrimination and the placement of fraudulent documentation into public records; and (5) that the NRC publicly post NMPC's Safety Evaluation 96-09, which addresses the Residual Heat Removal Alternate Shutdown Cooling for Unit 2, to make it available for public comment, or require NMPC to re-perform this safety evaluation.

The Director of the Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation has complied with the Petitioner's request to have his complaint forwarded to the NRC's Office of the Inspector General. The Petitioner's technical concern has been addressed independent of the Director's Decision by the NRC staff's letter to the Petitioner dated October 6, 1999. The Petitioner's additional requests are not supported for the reasons that are explained in the "Final Director's Decision Pursuant to 10 CFR 2.206" (DD-99-13). The complete text of the Final Director's Decision follows this notice and is available for public inspection at the Commission's Public Document Rooms located in the Gelman Building, 2120 L Street, NW., Washington, DC, and in the Reference and Documents Department, Penfield Library, State University of New York, Oswego, New York 13126.

A copy of the Decision will be filed with the Secretary of the Commission for the Commission's review in accordance with 10 CFR 2.206(c) of the Commission's regulations. As provided for by this regulation, the Decision will constitute the final action of the Commission 25 days after the date of issuance of the Decision unless the Commission, on its own motion, institutes a review of the Decision within that time.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 28th day of October 1999.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

**Samuel J. Collins,**

*Director, Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation.*

[FR Doc. 99-28759 Filed 11-2-99; 8:15 am]

BILLING CODE 7590-01-P

## NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

### Notice of Availability of Draft Revision To NUREG-1574; Standard Review Plan for Antitrust Reviews

**AGENCY:** Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

**ACTION:** Notice of availability: Draft Revision 1 to Nureg 1574, "Standard Review Plan (SRP) for Antitrust Reviews".

**SUMMARY:** The NRC is seeking public comment on a Draft Revision to NUREG-1574, "Standard Review Plan on Antitrust Reviews." The Standard Review Plan (SRP) is being revised in accordance with Commission guidance to remove any implication that the NRC would conduct antitrust reviews of license transfers after issuance of an operating license. The draft revised SRP is being published to obtain public comments which will be considered in evaluating whether the NRC review process in this area should be changed. The revised draft SRP will be available on NRC electronic bulletin boards and in the NRC's Public Document Room, 2120 L Street NW. (Lower Level), Washington, DC 20555-001. A free single copy of Draft Revision 1 to NUREG-1574, to the extent of supply, may be requested by writing to U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Records Management Branch, Washington, DC 20555-0001.

**DATES:** The public is invited to submit comments on the revised draft SRP by January 3, 2000. Comments received after this date will be considered if it is practical to do so, but assurance of consideration cannot be given except as to comments received on or before this date. On the basis of the submitted comments, the Commission will determine whether to modify the revised draft SRP before issuing it in final form.

**ADDRESSES:** Mail comments to: Secretary, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555, Attention: Docketing and Service Branch.

Deliver comments to: 11555 Rockville Pike, Rockville, Maryland, between 7:45 a.m. and 4:15 p.m., Federal workdays.

**SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:** The Draft Revision to NUREG-1574, "Standard Review Plan on Antitrust Reviews," describes the procedures used by the NRC staff to implement the antitrust review and enforcement prescribed in Sections 105 and 186 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and will replace the final NUREG-1574 published in December 1997. These

procedures are principally covered by the Commission's Rules and Regulations in 10 CFR 2.101, 2.102, 2.2, 50.33a, 52.77, 50.80, and 50.90. These procedures set forth the steps and criteria the staff applies in the antitrust review of construction permit/initial operating license applications. In addition, the procedures describe how the staff enforces compliance by licensees with antitrust license conditions.

**FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:** Mr. Michael J. Davis, Generic Issues, Environmental, Financial, and Rulemaking Branch, Division of Regulatory Improvement Programs, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555. Mr. Davis can be contacted at (301) 415-1016, via E-mail at [mjd1@nrc.gov](mailto:mjd1@nrc.gov), or by writing to: Michael J. Davis, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, MS O-11F1, Washington, DC 20555.

Dated at Rockville, Maryland, this 18th day of October 1999.

For the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

**David B. Matthews,**

*Director, Division of Regulatory Improvement Programs, Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation.*

[FR Doc. 99-28760 Filed 11-2-99; 8:15 am]

BILLING CODE 7590-01-P

## PANAMA CANAL COMMISSION

### Canal Zone Postal Money Orders and Savings Certificates

**AGENCY:** Panama Canal Commission.

**ACTION:** Notice.

**SUMMARY:** The Panama Canal Commission (Commission) hereby provides notice the Commission and the U.S. Government will no longer be responsible for the distribution of any accumulated unpaid balances relating to Canal Zone postal-savings deposits, postal-savings certificates, and postal money orders.

**DATES:** This action shall become effective December 1, 1999.

**FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:** Eva Chen, Manager, Accounting Division, Department of Financial Management, Telephone 011-507-272-4727, Facsimile 011-507-272-3849.

**SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:** When the Panama Canal Commission was created in 1979 by Public Law 96-70, approved September 27, 1979, Section 1331 of that law transferred the responsibility for the management of the Postal Savings deposits, certificates and money orders to the Commission. Public Law 140-201, approved September 23, 1996,

released the Commission from liability for unpaid balances due on postal-savings deposits and certificates and postal money orders effective December 1, 1999.

(Authority: 22 U.S.C. 3741)

Therefore, under the authority of 22 U.S.C. 3741, the Panama Canal Commission hereby gives notice after December 1, 1999, it will no longer be liable for any unpaid balances due on postal-savings deposits and certificates and postal money orders presented for payment.

Dated: October 13, 1999.

**John L. Haines, Jr.,**

*General Counsel, Panama Canal Commission.*

[FR Doc. 99-28785 Filed 11-2-99; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 3640-01-P

## SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

### Issuer Delisting; Notice of Application To Withdraw From Listing and Registration; (Advantage Marketing Systems, Inc., Common Stock, \$.0001 Par Value per Share) File No. 1-13343

October 28, 1999.

Advantage Marketing Systems, Inc. ("Company") has filed an application with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to Section 12(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Act") and Rule 12d2-2(d) promulgated thereunder, to withdraw the above specified security ("Security") from listing and registration on the Boston Stock Exchange, Incorporated ("BSE" or "Exchange").

The Security of the Company has been listed for trading on the BSE and, pursuant to a Registration Statement on Form 8-A filed with the Commission which became effective on June 9, 1999, on the American Stock Exchange LLC ("Amex"). Trading in the Company's Security on the Amex commenced at the opening of business on June 15, 1999.

In making its decision to withdraw its Security from listing and registration on the BSE, the Company considered the direct and indirect costs arising from maintaining the listing of such Security on the BSE and Amex simultaneously. Moreover, the Company does not see any particular advantage in having its Security trade in two markets and seeks to avoid fragmenting the market for its Security.

The Company has complied with the rules of the BSE by filing with the Exchange a certified copy of the preambles and resolutions adopted by the Company's Board of Directors

authorizing the withdrawal of its Security from listing on the BSE and by setting forth in detail to the Exchange the reasons for the proposed withdrawal and the facts to support thereof.

The BSE has informed the Company that it has no objection to the withdrawal of the Company's Security from listing on the Exchange.

The Company's application relates solely to the withdrawal of the Securities from listing and registration on the BSE and shall have no effect upon their continued listing and registration on the Amex. By reason of Section 12(b) of the Act and the rules and regulations of the Commission thereunder, the Company shall continue to be obligated to file with the Commission and the Amex any reports required under Section 13 of the Act.

Any interested person may, on or before November 18, 1999, submit by letter to the Secretary of the Securities and Exchange Commission, 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549-0609, facts bearing upon whether the application has been made in accordance with the rules of the BSE and what terms, if any, should be imposed by the Commission for the protection of investors. The Commission, based on the information submitted to it, will issue an order granting the application after the date mentioned above, unless the Commission determines to order a hearing on the matter.

For the Commission, by the Division of Market Regulation, pursuant to delegated authority.

**Jonathan G. Katz,**

*Secretary.*

[FR Doc. 99-28756 Filed 11-2-99; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 8010-01-M

## SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

### Issuer Delisting; Notice of Application To Withdraw From Listing and Registration; (IKON Office Solutions, Inc., Common Stock, No Par Value, and Associated Preferred Share Purchase Rights) File No. 1-5964

October 28, 1999

IKON Office Solutions, Inc. ("Company") has filed an application with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("Commission"), pursuant to Section 12(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 ("Act") and Rule 12d-2(d) promulgated thereunder, to withdraw the above specified securities ("Securities") from listing and registration on the Chicago Stock Exchange, Incorporated ("CHX") and